ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 6, 2014
8:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis

Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Representative Charisse MIllett
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 22

Requesting the United States Congress to call a convention of
the states to propose anendnents to the Constitution of the
United States that inpose fiscal restraints on the federal
government, limt the power and jurisdiction of the federal
government, and |imt the terns of office of federal governnent
officials; and urging the legislatures of the other 49 states to
request the United States Congress to call a convention of the
st ates.

- MOVED HIR 22 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 274

"An Act relating to public hearings on initiatives and referenda
scheduled to appear on the ballot; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 17

Proposi ng anmendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the Al aska permanent fund, establishing the earnings
reserve account, relating to the permanent fund dividend, and
requiring the permanent fund dividend be at |east equal to the
amount that woul d be cal cul ated under current |aw

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 6, 2014



- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 22

SHORT TITLE: FEDERAL CONSTI TUTI ONAL CONVENTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) T. W LSON

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) STA, FIN

02/ 06/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 274

SHORT TI TLE:. HEARI NGS ON REFERENDA
SPONSOR(s): RULES

01/ 24/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (H) STA, JUD
02/ 06/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HIR 17
SHORT TI TLE: CONST AM GUARANTEE PERM FUND DI VI DEND
SPONSOR(s): GARA

04/ 03/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 03/ 13 (H STA, JUD, FIN
02/ 06/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE TAMM E W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HIR 22.

M CHAEL P. FARRI' S, Head

Convention of States (COS);

Chancel | or

Patrick Henry Coll ege

Purcellville, Virginia

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 22.

TAYLOR HANCOCK, St udent

Tri Valley H gh School

Heal y, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 22.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 6, 2014



ZABRI NA BYFUGLI EN, St udent

Tri Valley Hi gh School

Heal y, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HIR 22.

NIl COLE MACVASTER, St udent

Tri Valley Hi gh School

Heal y, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 22.

| SABELLA SAXE, Student

Tri Valley Hi gh School

Heal y, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Covered opposing views of constitutional
conventions and responses to themduring the hearing on HIR 22.

CHRI STI NE HUTCHI SON
Kenai, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 22.

DAVI D ElI CHLER
North Pol e, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 22.

SEYMOUR M LLS
Sterling, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HIR 22.

TOM BUZARD
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 22.

DON BRAND, Al aska Legi sl ative Liaison

Convention of States (COS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 22.

M KE COONS

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Citizen's Initiative
during the hearing on HIR 22.

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HIR 17.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 6, 2014



Rl CK HALFORD
Chugi ak, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 17.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:08: 02 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
nmeeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representatives Keller, |saacson
Gattis, Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the
call to order. Representative MIllett arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HIR 22- FEDERAL CONSTI TUTI ONAL CONVENTI ON

8:08: 52 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 22, Requesting the United States Congress
to call a convention of the states to propose anendnents to the
Constitution of the United States that inpose fiscal restraints
on the federal governnment, limt the power and jurisdiction of
the federal governnent, and limt the terns of office of federa

governnent officials; and urging the legislatures of the other
49 states to request the United States Congress to call a
convention of the states.

8: 09: 09 AM
REPRESENTATIVE TAMME WLSON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, i ntroduced HIR 22. She presented the sponsor
st atement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

It is the solemm duty of the states to protect the
liberty of its peopl e, particularly for t he
generations to cone, to propose anendnents to the
Constitution of the United States through a convention
of the states under article V to place clear
restraints on these and rel ated abuses of powers.

Article V, US. Constitution states: "The Congress,

whenever two thirds of both houses shall deem it
necessary, shal | pr opose anendnent s to this
Consti tution, or, on t he application of t he

| egislatures of two thirds of the several states,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 6, 2014



shall call a convention for proposing anendnents,
which, in either case, shall be valid to all intents
and purposes, as part of this Constitution, when
ratified by the legislatures of three fourths of the
several states, or by conventions in three fourths
thereof as the one or the other node of ratification
may be proposed by the Congress; provided that no
amendnent which may be nmade prior to the year one
t housand eight hundred and eight shall in any manner
affect the first and fourth clauses in the ninth
section of the first article; and that no state,
without its consent, shall be deprived of its equal
suffrage in the Senate.”

By calling a convention of states, we can stop the
federal spending and debt spree, the power grabs of
the federal <courts, and other msuses of federal
power . The current situation is precisely what the
Founders feared, and they gave us a solution we have a
duty to use.

8:11: 21 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said it seens |like the interference of
the federal governnent with state affairs is occurring wth
increasing reqgularity, in matters ranging from resources to
busi nesses. She said the options are to continue to do nothing
or to send a nessage to the federal governnent that it has
overstepped its powers. She said 34 states would have to
[submt applications for the same issue] and 38 would need to
ratify an amendnent. She said she has heard one concern is that
it would be a runaway convention wth nunerous anmendnents
passed, but she opined that that would not be a problem
because, for exanple, of the tinme it takes 40 legislators to

agree on a single issue. She said it took vyears for
Representative MIllett "to get sonething done that was clearly
the responsibility of the federal governnment." She stated that
it will take Alaska years to undue all the regulations inposed
by the federal governnent. She said the situation closest to
home for her had to do with m ners dredging and "all of a sudden
people cone like they're ... ready to shoot you down out of

nowhere for what?" She said her answer is to not |let anything
like that happen again, but instead to protect Alaskans from
federal overreach. She opined that Alaska does not need
Washington, D.C., to dictate how the state takes care of its
environnment and correctly runs its businesses.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 6, 2014



8:14: 47 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his understanding that there is other simlar
| egi sl ation; he asked the bill sponsor how HIR 22 differs.

8:15: 13 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON offered her understanding that in the
past, when trying "to do resolutions |like this and get people
together, ... other states ... have put together resolutions
that are very different from each other." She expl ai ned that
| egislation calling a convention of states has to be witten and
adhered to specifically. She related that about 14 others
states have already done so. She said, "There are other ways to
do this same thing, like the balanced budget anendnment, but
that's a very specific amendnent that there would be a
convention for. This one would be for anything that has to do
with federal overreach."” She said the states would be able to
cone together however they decide to put their delegates
t oget her. She added, "It would not be the sane subject as |
bel i eve the other resolution is.”

8:16:19 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON, in response to the chair, related that
the names of the other states, along with their resolutions, are
listed in the comrmittee packet, and include Arizona, Florida,
| daho, Kansas, and New Mexi co.

8:16: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked the bill sponsor for bringing
forward HIR 22. He indicated that he would have simlar
| egi sl ation before the commttee. He tal ked about the history
and record related to changes to the Constitution. He opi ned
that the ability of the people to change the U S. Constitution
is significant.

8:18: 35 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there is any possibility of "conbining the
two in sone way."

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON answered no. She explained that the
resolutions have to be "as close as possible” to show that the
states wll nmeet for the sanme purpose. Conmbi ning the
resolutions would nmeke the end result too different from the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 6, 2014



resolutions of other states. In response to the chair, she
confirmed that HIR 22 currently matches the resolutions of the
ot her states. She said she thinks Georgia changed a couple
words, but wi thout changing the neaning. She commented on the
foresight of the Founding Fathers in including the nmeans for the
people of the United States to "put in check a bigger form of
gover nnent . "

8:20: 26 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES tal ked about the $17 trillion debt of the
federal governnent, and she indicated that that does not include
the approximately $50 trillion cost for "social security and
ot her things." She opined that the nunbers are staggering and
the debt wunfair to future generations. She said, "So, |
appreciate this." She said she has spoken with legislators from
others states and "there 1is nonentum” She stated her
understanding that there was a M. Vernon Assenbly bi-partisan
effort, where 33 states discuss this issue. She asked the bil
sponsor, "Can you speak to how this mght be related to that?"

8:21: 50 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said she was unable to attend [the
assenbl y] . Nevert hel ess, she said she thinks it was a way to
initiate the conversation and to show that states have federal
overreach in conmon. She said federal overreach not only
affects states financially, but also stunts the growh of
st at es. For exanple, if a person who owns property on wetl ands
wants to devel op, he/she nust go to the Corps of Engineers. She
asked, "When did we ever think that woul d happen?"

8:22:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked the bill sponsor for bringing
HIR 22 forward. He related that there are "various novenents
af oot . " He indicated that he likes HIR 22, because it 1is
topical, thus many things can be discussed and an amendnent can
cone forward. Regarding other groups gaining nonentum he
asked, "If everyone's fractured, how will we ever get it all

t oget her, conbi ned?”
8:23:57 AM
REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON answered that there are no guarantees,

but [HIR 22] will stay on the books. She opined that it is the
onus of the legislature to explain why it chose this |egislation

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 6, 2014



over anot her. She said there is no sunset date on HIR 22.
Congress wll be looking at every reason "to throw out this
state or that state and make the process go |I|onger." She
indicated that HIR 22 would not be necessary if the federal
government were willing to put itself "in check."

8:25:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified that [the process by which
states call for a constitutional convention] has been used
before, but it has never cone to fruition. He offered exanples.
He relayed that he attended the aforenmentioned M. Vernon
Assenbly, and he said that entity is trying to bring everyone
together to determ ne how best to operate by the rules of the
conventi on.

8:27:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT thanked the sponsor for bringing HIR 22
f orward. She said she has spent nost of her |egislative career
fighting the federal governnent. She talked about western
states being owned predom nately by the federal governnent, and
said she thinks other western states are allies with Al aska.
She expressed hope that at sone point "we" could take [HIR 22]
to some of the organizations to which Al aska belongs, such as
Council of State Governnents-WEST (CSG West), because she said
she thinks those organizations would be willing to "join in and
mmc our |egislation.” Representative MIllett talked about
using HIR 24 as a vehicle to forma western coalition that would
be a united front in expressing discontent with the decisions
made by the federal governnment.

8:29:12 AM
REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWI NS asked in which states simlar

| egislation has nmade it through the |egislative process and been
ratified.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON answered none. She said CGeorgia is the
furthest along; its legislation has passed out of the Senate.
She expressed her desire to have Alaska be the first state to
pass its | egislation.

8:30: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked Representative T. WIson to confirm
that HIR 22, if passed, would remain in perpetuity, which makes

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 6, 2014



it alright if it takes a few years for the other 34 states to
pass their |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON confirnmed that is correct.
8:31: 10 AM

M CHAEL P. FARRI'S, Head, Convention of States (COS); Chancell or
Patrick Henry Coll ege, stated that he teaches constitutional |aw
and is one of the people who helped draft the nodel |egislation
upon which HIR 22 is based. He said, "This is the first year
that this particular Article V effort has been undertaken, and

this is the fastest growing, the biggest version of an
Article V process.™ He said there are a lot of problenms with
the federal governnent that go beyond "the bal anced budget,"” the
issue on which all the other efforts with any nonmentum at all
are focused. He continued as foll ows:

Qurs is the only resolution that's focused on federa
interference with states and federal jurisdictional
problens of a broader scope, where the President's
allowed to nake |aw through executive order; where the
various agencies are just sinply interfering in our
lives, both in the processes of the state governnent
and in private businesses, in ways that the founders
never i ntended. The fundanental problem is that
Washington, D.C., is never ... going to curtail its
own power, and so, the founders gave us this nethod
for this very purpose.

MR. FARRIS related that there have been over 400 applications
from the states in the history of the Republic, but the two-
thirds requirenent has never been net. However, he stated,
"We're on a fast track to do this."™ The effort is brand new, it
is early in the legislative process. He said at this nonent the
Virginia House is debating the issue; GCeorgia's House is

expected to take up the issue soon. He indicated that he has
been asked to testify in Louisiana and Mssouri. He stated, "W
believe in two or three years we wll get to 34 states.” He

said, "The people want a solution that's as big as the problem™
He said Mark Levin's book, The Liberty Anmendnents: Restoring the
Anerican Republic, parallels the Convention of States' approach

He stated, "W're ained at getting to 34 states rapidly, calling
a convention, and having a real opportunity to correct federa

overreach and protect the states and protect our citizens."

8:35:21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked what assurance can be made that a
convention called for a subject rather than a single anmendnent
woul d not "be a runaway train."

MR. FARRIS answered that there has to be agreenent on the
subj ect . He conpared it to proposing the Bill of Rights, which
was one topic with twelve proposed anendnents, each of which was

consi dered individually. Anyt hing outside the topic would not
be gernane. He said he thinks the following topics wll be
considered: federal spending, federal debt, federal regulation,
and the power of the courts. It is unconstitutional to change

the process in md-stream
8:39: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked what M. Farris' organization is
doi ng toward educating the public on this issue.

MR. FARRI S responded that [COS] is dedicated to building a grass
roots network. He said the organization's notto is "Show up,
stand up, speak up,” and it is focused on ensuring that in 75
percent of the legislative districts in country, it has educated

enough people that they are willing to becone active, so that
there are at |east 100 people in the districts that will help
not only to get the 34 anendnents at the state level, but also
to get the amendnents approved and ratified by 38 states. He
said that as the founder of the Honeschool Legal Defense
Associ ati on, he has substanti al grassroots educat i onal

experience in the area of honeschooling. He said Mark Meckl er,
president of Citizens for Self-CGovernance and the co-founder of
the Tea Party Patriots, is working with himon this educational
pursuit. He stated, "Utimately, unless the citizens understand
this and get behind it, we wll not be successful.” He said
only 9 percent of the Anmerican public approves the job of
Congr ess. He nentioned others involved in bringing information
to the public, including Mark Levin and 3 en Beck, and said M ke
Huckabee endorsed the COS application.

8:42:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasized that he thinks it is inportant
that this is not a partisan issue. He asked M. Farris to
coment .

MR. FARRIS responded that it should not be a partisan issue,
because "even in Berkley they will tell you they want the rules

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 6, 2014



made by Berkley." He said he grew up working on a farm part-
time, so he understands the inpact of the federal governnent on
western farm |l ands and mning, for exanple. He said Washi ngton
and Oregon are nore denocratically inclined, but he thinks those
states could be persuaded to participate, |largely because of the
western | and issue. He added, "Qur application is the only one
that has the rule of germaneness that would allow that to be
addressed.” At the nonent, he said, there are nore Republicans
on board than Denocrats, but "we're trying our best."

8:.44:. 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON comrended M. Farris for "getting out
the nessage.” He said he learned a |lot by reading the materia
provided by M. Farris. He said, "I'm glad to hear that it's
al so partisan, and that is also part of what | wanted, because
in the western states we have so many liberal legislators.” He

guestioned how likely it would be to get the support of states,
such as Nevada, that have delegates in Washington, D.C., who are
opposed to it.

8:46: 00 AM

MR. FARRIS said the project is counting on Nevada to join in as
one of the 34 states. He said Nevada is one of the nore
conservative states in the country, despite its control by
Denocrats. He offered his belief that there are "enough rurally
hel d Denocratic seats" in the state of Washington to gain its
support. He explained that urban districts tend to believe that
the purpose of the governnent is to provide for their needs,
whereas rural and nore suburban areas believe that the purpose
of governnment is to protect life, liberty, and property. He
said, "The western lands issue will be front and center in our
appeal to Washington."

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noted that the next step after calling a
convention - when the states would choose delegates - is not
outlined in the proposed joint resolution.

8:48: 28 AM

MR. FARRIS confirnmed that the next step would be for the states
to pass a resolution nam ng their del egates. Each state would
have one vote. M. Farris recommended appointing 9 or 11
del egates so that "if sonebody gets a crazy idea, one person
isn't going to affect how Alaska votes." He recomended
appointing people with experience related to "the purposes of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 6, 2014



government and ... share the values that led to the resolution."
He tal ked about counting on Alaska to send the sonme of the best
del egates because of the state's philosophy on federal
overreach. He said there have been 32 conventions in the
history of +the <country, and not once have delegates ever
violated the instructions given to them by their state
| egi sl at ures.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked M. Farris to confirm that he is
saying that of all the nmethods of choosing del egates, "the best
i nformed would be to cone fromthe |l egislature.”

MR FARRIS answered yes, but added that it would also be
appropriate to have sonme nonlegislative citizen activists as
del egat es.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON clarified that he neant the |egislators
woul d pick the del egat es.

8:51: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON suggested that the legislature in each
state could choose how to pick delegates. She echoed M.
Farris' previous remark that each state ultimately would have
one vote. She recommended focusing on getting HIR 22 passed and
saving the other issue to discuss at a later tine.

8:51:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES echoed Representative Keller's previous
question as to how nuch public education of Anerican citizens
was underway regarding this effort.

MR. FARRI S noted that he was on his way to take part in a public
debate on this issue in Florida, and debates are scheduled in
other states. He said he has been on M ke Huckabee's television
show. He relayed that M. Levin's aforenentioned book was the
nunber one best seller on The New York Tines' list for severa
weeks. He said COS has hired a nedia consultant to get on nore
tel evision stations, generate radio prograns, and utilize social
nmedi a. He said he is convinced of the inportance of working at
the grass roots |evel. He offered his understanding that it
woul d take about 3 million people educated on this issue to nake
it happen nationw de.

8:56: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 6, 2014



TAYLOR HANCOCK, Student, Tri Valley H gh School, stated that he
is one of a group of students to testify on HIR 22. He stated
that an often clained defect of the Articles of Confederation
was the lack of power granted to central governnent to "lay and

collect taxes,”" which resulted in Congress' reliance on
requisitions from its mnmenber states. M. Hancock said sone
states were ignoring requests from Congress or only paying in
part. Congress proposed anendnents to the Articles of
Confederation in an effort to supersede it; nothing cane from
this effort wuntil the Philadel phia convention. M. Hancock
said, "The power to tax is a concurrent power of the federal
government and the individual states.” He added that the power

to tax has, on occasion, been curtailed by the courts. He cited
[the beginning of Article 1, Section 8, of] the Constitution of
the United States, which read:

The Congress shall have power To lay and collect
Taxes, Duties, Inposts and Excises, to pay the Debts
and provide for the common Defence and general Welfare
of the United States; but all Duties, Inposts and
Exci ses shall be uniformthroughout the United States;

MR. HANCOCK offered his understanding that Thonmas Jefferson had
a very strong view of the general welfare [of U S. citizens] and
believed that the Constitution of the United States should be
strongly enforced and that taxation was for the sole purpose
payi ng debts and "providing for the welfare of the Union." M.
Hancock stated his perception of those words is that "we shoul d
reel in the governnent by going back to the Constitution"” and
giving [the federal governnent] "the bare mninmm of its
constitutionally witten powers. He said as a student he is
seeing how the governnment is spinning into "an uncontroll able
whi r| pool of debt."

MR. HANCOCK stated that Article 1, Section 8, Cause 3, of the
Constitution of the United States, gives Congress the power to
"regulate Commerce with foreign Nations, and anong the several
states, and wth the Indian Tribes." The Constitution
enunerates certain powers for the federal governnent. He stated
that the 10th Anendnent provides that many powers not enunerated
in the Constitution are reserved for the state. He said
Congress has often used the comrerce clause to justify excising
| egi sl ative power over the activities of the states and their
citizens, leading to significant ongoing controversy regarding
the balance of power between the federal governnent and the
states. In conclusion, M. Hancock opined that "we" should reel

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 6, 2014



in the [federal] governnent by giving it only those powers
defined in the Constitution.

8:59: 33 AM

ZABRI NA BYFUGLI EN, Student, Tri Valley H gh School, read her
testinmony as foll ows:

H, nmy name is Zabrina Byfuglien, and I'm a junior at
Tri-Valley school. |"'m here with a few students from
my governnment class, and we believe that there has
been too nuch power vested in the federal governnent
and not enough in the states. This is not how it
shoul d be. An exanple of the governnent taking away
state sovereignty is in our education curriculum Most
of the decisions about this are nmade by the nationa

governnment, when they should be being nmade by the
state governnment, such as you folks in Juneau. I

would like to address that this is what our founding
fathers truly planned for our country, and | have a
few quotes to show you

From Federalist Paper Nunber 39: "Each state, in
ratifying the Constitution, is considered as a
soverei gn body, independent of all others, and only to
be bound by its own voluntary act. In this relation,
then, the new Constitution will, if established, be a
federal and not a national constitution." ... This
was cenenting that the states will have ... rights,
after signing the constitution, and can stay
i ndependent .

And | have another from Alexander Hamlton in
Federal i st Paper Nunmber 32: "But as the plan of the
convention ains only at a partial union or
consolidation, the state governnents would clearly
retain all rights of sovereignty which they before
had, and which were not, [by] that act, exclusively
del egated to the United States.” ... This shows that

Al exander Ham lton believed that the states should
al ways have soverei gn power.

And from Thonmas Jefferson: "Wen governnents fear the
people there is liberty. Wwen the people fear the
governnment there is tyranny." ... This is what |I'm
afraid of, that our governnment wll becone too

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 14- February 6, 2014



powerful and we will all end up fearing them There
shoul d be nore state sovereignty.

And |astly, from Thomas Jefferson: "When al

governnent, donestic and foreign, in little as in
great things, shall be drawn to Wshington as the
center of all power, it wll render powerless the

checks provided of one governnent on another, and wl|
becone as venal and oppressive as the governnment from
which we separated.” ... This is saying that the
federal government doesn't need to be brought into all
of Alaska's little business.

51 AM

9: 01:

NI COL
woul d
conti

E MACVASTER, Student, Tri Valley Hi gh School, announced she

tal k about regulatory spending and debt crisis.
nued as foll ows:

The information about the regulatory crisis | got from

Joe Usibelli; he's the owner of the Usibelli Coal
M ne. He said the federal governnent passed a |aw
that |ead regulations states can permt. Air permts

and water discharges originated at the federal |Ievel;
now, however, it's at the state.

Feder al envi ronnent al , [ Envi ronment al Protection
Agency] EPA, nmaintains on the federal |evel working
over the shoulder of the states. And the federal

government needs to abide by the state, not the EPA
I nvol ved in the EPA standards, [particle matter] PM
215, they threatened to take over. States have the
ability to take away prograns through the EPA;
however, it's costly, tine consum ng, and they have to
keep up with all the regul ations. Federal governnent
Departnent of Interior is putting nore pressure on the
states to interpret their own regulations. The
government doesn't have the right to tell the state
what regulations to nmake. State regulators want to
maintain a relationship with the federal governnent,
but it's hard.

Harm that the EPA does to this conpany is it's
extrenely expensive, and the |egal expenses are also
real ly high. Recently, the governnment has put nore
regul ations on the state. So, | say the governnent

She

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 6, 2014



shoul d keep their nose out of it, and it should be run
by the state.

Qur country is $17 trillion in debt to other nations.
Most of the debt is a result of ... out of control
federal governnent spending. What nost people don't
know is that in just the U S, we are $60 trillion in
debt . That nmeans that every single US. citizen is
about $200,000 in debt. 1'm 16, and | already owe the

government nore than going to an average college is
going to cost.

There's a lot about this country's debt that | don't
understand, but what | have found is that the US. is
still the stabilizer for other states, and unlike when

nations held their own, it's now |ike a world nation
When ot her countries' market crashes, ours |owers, and
Vi ce versa. | f people are going bankrupt and cities
are going bankrupt, then won't states and eventually
our country? At our dinner table, if our budget is

zero, we ... can't do things we want. W don't have
the power to just print nore noney and raise the debt
ceiling. W need to start paying our debt, or

everyone is just going to go bankrupt if we don't.

The Federal Reserve purchases treasuries from its
menber banks using credit it created out of thin air.
This is the sane as affect as printing noney; it keeps

interest rates low, avoiding high interest rate
penalties the federal governnent would usually inpose

for excessive debt. Qur governnment is out of contro
with its spending. The governnent is racking up so
much debt, it's going to beconme a huge financial ness
for ny generation. It's like a pile of dog poop

[lying] on the beach; the governnent just Kkeeps
pushing sone sand over the top to cover it up, but

when soneone new cones along, I|ike ny generation,
we're going to get a nasty foot full of dog poop. It
is ny hope that you will be able to |eave feeling |ike
you've |eft something behind ny generation can be
proud of. So, | fully support Tamme WIson's
resol ution. Thank you for your tine and allow ng ne
to testify.
9:05: 35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 6, 2014



| SABELLA SAXE, Student, Tri Valley H gh School, countered
argunents against calling for a constitutional convention. She
said sone opposition fears that a constitutional convention wll
beconme a runaway convention. She said neasures are in place to
prevent this from happening. She explained that the United
States was built on the principle that mankind is inperfect,
t hus checks and bal ances are needed. When states call for a
convention, they do so with a limt on the topics and issues
that can be discussed. Congress, after receiving 34 simlar
applications, wll then specify the scope, ensuring that the
topic and ensuing anendnent are on point. She indicated there
is a further check in place to address the renote |ikelihood of
an anendnent unrelated to what was initially proposed. She
said, "It is Congress' mandatory duty to deny ratification."
She nentioned the 38 states needed to vote to ratify any
amendnent to the constitution, and said ratification is "not an
easy idea to sell."

MS. SAXE continued as foll ows:

Wen the state of Alaska sends delegates to this

convention you can |imt the anmendnents that our
del egates can discuss. If they happen to go beyond
their scope they can be recalled. |If delegates going
past the scope is still a concern, you can do what

I ndiana has done, and pass legislation that [puts]
controls on their delegates to an Article 5
conventi on.

These conventions cannot nake up their own rules or
change existing ones to make ratification an easier

process. That's not the way the system is set up.
The Founding Fathers clearly laid out what to do in
tinmes |like these, and we are ignoring our duty as

Anericans when we ignore Article 5 when we ignore the
very directions we have a responsibility to carry out.
When the governnent has plainly overstepped its
boundaries and burdened us wth trenendous debt, we

have the obligation to act. ... Speaking for the
generation that will grow up in this country, we don’'t
want to grow up anongst piles and piles of debt. Once

again, we are students from a governnment class in
Heal y, Al aska. Thank you.

9:08: 14 AM

CHAI R LYNN comrended the students for their testinony.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 6, 2014



9:09: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER acknow edged that he had previously stated
that the attenpt to change term limts had been in the 1800s,
but it was actually 1940. He clarified that he had been
t hi nki ng about "the largest attenpt,” which was by the states to
stop the Gvil War.

9:10: 29 AM

CHRI STINE HUTCHI SON testified that she had been followi ng the
convention of states issue since Novenber [2013] and vol unteered
to be a district |eader on the Kenai Peninsula, to get the word
out "anong these people” and further to friends in other states
via social nmedia. She opined that this is a critical issue for
the nation and for Al aska. She said there are many steps |eft
to go in the process, and she warned "it could fall off the
rails anywhere." Ms. Hutchison expressed her appreciation for
the efforts of people pushing this issue forward, and said she
would like to see the proposed joint resolution make it through
the House and Senate this year to show [Al aska] as "the | argest
and nost interested in this project.”

9:13: 04 AM

DAVID EICHLER testified that last sunmer, the legislature held
heari ngs on federal overreach, and he relayed that he heard Mark
Levin speak at the Reagan Library, in Sim, California, and
argue that [a constitutional convention] is the only effective
solution to the problem He stated that all three branches of
government refuse to exercise self-restraint, an inevitability
foreseen by the witers of the Constitution who included Article
5 as a neans for "reasserting the primacy of the people to their
state legislatures.™ He said his own research brought him to
the Convention of States project, which is a coordinated effort
to address the problem and approve the 34 applications required
from states to call a convention, all of which nust be simlar.
He said, "Because we know that Congress wll not wllingly
[cede] any of its power ..., we are being careful to nake it
inpossible to reject the necessary applications.” He rel ayed
that he volunteered as state director of COS and has found
enthusiastic support from the offices of legislators from
Fai r banks and North Pol e.

9:17:11 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 6, 2014



MR. EICHLER said a network of volunteers throughout the state
for education and support has been built and speaks to various

gr oups. He said the groundswell of support is amazing,
especially considering it has all happened within the last four
or five nonths. He said there are nmany advocacy groups that
uphold certain amendnents in the Bill of Rights, including the

American Civil Liberties Union (ACLU) for the First Anendnent
and the National Rifle Association for the Second Anendnent, but
the only advocates for the Tenth Anendnent are state
| egislatures, and Article 5 is the neans by which those
| egislatures can maintain constitutional order. M. Eichler
asked the conmittee to support and approve HIR 22.

CHAI R LYNN asked about funding sources for the effort to have a
convention of the states.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said she does not know of a funding
source for the grassroots effort. In response to a followup
guestion, she said she would find out about how funds are raised
in other states, but said the efforts in Alaska are al
vol unt eer - based.

9:19:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON asked M. Eichler if he has conmuni cated
with other state directors and knows what their progress is.

MR. EICHLER answered that there are currently 40 states wth
statewide volunteer |eadership and 9 states wth filed or

prefiled applications. He related his involvenent with the
efforts that lead to Georgia' s resolution getting passed through
its Senate. He indicated that he uses his own funds. He said

"the national organization”™ is an educational service and can
receive contributions; however, all the efforts in Al aska are
sel f-funded and do not receive outside noney.

9:21:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON thanked M. Eichler and asked if the
Al aska group nmay need "a capital lift."

MR. EICHLER responded that the goal of the Alaska group is to

have the |egislature pass a resolution. He said he thinks the
group is building upon "the already existing dissatisfaction we
have in the state with the federal governnment." He said funding

m ght be an issue in states where there may be obstacles, such
as Washington and Oregon; however, he stated his intention to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 6, 2014



continue in the current nmanner for as long as that s
successful .

9:23: 01 AM
SEYMOUR M LLS testified that a convention of the states wll

result in a constitutional convention and in the loss of the
current Constitution of the United States, which is "exactly

what the powers that be want.” He opined that the only
necessary action is to reinforce the original Constitution,
which he said is not being done. He said the original
constitutional convention in 1887 proved that a convention
"cannot be limted or controlled.”™ He urged, "Don't push this."
9:23:47 AM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said M. MIls is not entirely
incorrect, because Congress is not doing as it should. She
opined that it is up to the states to take a stand when that
happens.

MR MLLS said, "Wll, this won't do that."

9:24:19 AM

TOM BUZARD testified in support of HIR 22. He said Anericans -
particular Alaskans - are "living in fear of the federal
governnent . " He offered his belief that "tyranny is here now'
and "we are the brave few that are willing to stand up and dea
with this.” He encouraged forward nmonentum and said he is

excited by the possibility of Alaska being the first state to
pass such a resol ution. He said Al aska gave marching orders to
the federal governnment |ast year over the issue of firearns.

MR. BUZARD posited that the anmount of debt being left to future
generations is wong. He urged passage of HIR 22 through both
bodi es. He opined that the previous statenent by M. MIIs that
a convention of the states wuld cause a constitutiona
convention is incorrect. He said a convention of the states is
convened for the specific purpose of the suggested item which
under HIR 22 would be to reign in federal spending and an out-
of -control federal governnent.

9:27:37 AM

DON BRAND, Al aska Legislative Liaison, Convention of States
(C0S), said he became aware of the possibility of doing

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 6, 2014



somet hing about the growing list of federal abuses when he read

Mark Levin's aforenmentioned book. He relayed that he had
distributed copies of M. Levin's book to several people in the
capitol for the purpose of "getting the word out." He noted

that he had provided the commttee with a handout [included in
the commttee packet, entitled "Convention of States Project and
HIR 22"], the contents of which he said have nostly been covered

al r eady. He said he feels strongly about this issue and is
worried about the U S He stated, "I see this as probably the
only legal and legitimate way to actually get the federal
governnent under control again.” He said he is far nore
concerned about a "runaway Congress" than a "runaway

convention. "

MR. BRAND directed attention to the |ast page of the handout,
whi ch highlights the COS grassroots organization, for which he
serves as legislative |iaison. There is also a state director
a coalition director, 57 other volunteers that have fornally
signed up as volunteers for COS, and hundreds of others
identified as supporters.

9: 30: 54 AM

MR. BRAND offered his understanding that Senator Tom Coburn of
&l ahoma has inplied that part of the reason he is resigning is
to try to fix Congress fromthe outside. He said Senator Coburn
announced that he would be a supporter of COCS.

9:33: 00 AM

M KE COONS stated that he was testifying on behalf of Ctizen's
Initiative and hinself. He said COS, Conpact for Anerica, and
Citizen's Initiative, are all patriotic organizations that have
valid concern about a runaway Congress and [judicial branch];
therefore, these organizations are working toward the use of
Article 5 to produce anendnent(s) that wll strengthen the
Constitution of the United States and stop federal overreach.

MR. COONS pointed out a major difference between Citizen's
United and COS has to do with subject versus specific amendment.
He said Article 5 specifically outlines that two-thirds of
several states shall call a convention for proposing anmendnents.
He indicated that through conversations with M. Brand, he found
that COS's intent is to be able to "propose multiple anendnents

off of each subject.” He explained the concern of Citizen's
Initiative is that such a resolution would be disallowed for
being too general in nature. He related that he sent to

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 6, 2014



Representatives WIson and Keller docunentation and e-nmails on
this matter, along with a white paper outlining the pros and

cons of COS nethodology. He said, "Sadly, | do not see that in
the resolution packet, but | hope that all conmttee nenbers
wi |l have a chance to review that."

MR. COONS, in closing, indicated his support aligns with that of
the Citizen's Initiative for using Article 5 in a safe and cl ear
manner to result in a convention ained toward pulling the nation
back from falling to dictatorshinp. He said, "W have specific
calls for a specific anendnent that we tried to put forward this
year," but ran out of tine. He announced, "W will be putting
forward our states' sovereignty and states' rights anendnent and
count ermand anendnent for the 2015 session.”

9:35:19 AM

VR. COONS, in response to a previous guestion  from
Representative Hughes, said Arizona's COS resolution failed, but
the state is working on "a specific delegate resolution.” He
said there are indications that "the House side of Florida is
fl oundering." He said Citizen's Initiative is wusing social
nmedi a and has an Internet and frequency nodul ation (FM station,
whi ch shows every Tuesday - every other Tuesday being reserved

for a legislative round table.
9:36: 02 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony on HIR 22.

9:37: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Representative Hughes,
reviewed the process under Article V, highlighting the two ways
to ratify an anendnent: a three-fourths vote by state
| egislatures or three-fourth vote of the states in convention.
He said it is up to Congress to choose whi ch net hod.

9:38: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWKINS said he is not sure he wll
recommend HIR 22 to the full body for passage. He said he has
two fundanental concerns, one ideological and the second
practical. He offered his understanding that HIR 22 is intended
as a nonpartisan neasure; however, he said he thinks the four
provisions that the convention of the states outline have deep

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 6, 2014



i deol ogi cal connotations, which are not necessarily nonpartisan.
He said if there was a convention of the states with the goal of
reformng the federal governnent, he feels that the areas for
reform could be outlined in a nmanner that would be nore
inclusive and generate bipartisan support. He offered, as
exanpl e, the gerrymandering and redistricting process, where one
party mani pulates and corrals the other party and vice versa
and "nobody w ns."

9:40: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWINS stated that the U S., in recent
years, has faced "al nost apocal yptic dysfunction on the federa

| evel ," and nobody I|ikes that. He expressed concern that a
convention of states may be "hijacked or crippled by that
at nosphere.” He conpared it to grocery shopping after fasting

for 48 hours. He said considering the people and groups behind
this, whose philosophy he respects but does not necessarily
shar e, he thinks a <convention of states would lead to
essentially the kind of dysfunction that has been seen in
Congress, but "in a different and perhaps even nore inportant
forum™

9:41: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER clarified for the record that the four
points to which Representative Kreiss-Tonkins referred are: the
spending and debt crisis; the regulatory crisis; t he
congressional tax on state sovereignty; and the federal takeover
of decision making. He expressed his hope that there could be a
bi - parti san understandi ng of "what those things nean."

9:42: 32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HIR 22 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 22 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HB 274- HEARI NGS ON REFERENDA

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 21.]
9:43: 05 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 274, "An Act relating to public hearings on initiatives

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 6, 2014



and referenda scheduled to appear on the ballot; and providing
for an effective date.”

9:43: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT introduced HB 274 on behalf of the House
Rul es Standing Conmittee, sponsor. She said about four vyears
ago the legislature passed House Bill 36, also called "the Open
and Transparent Initiative Act," which made four changes to
Alaska's initiative laws, but did not include referenduns. She

expl ai ned that referenduns had not been used in several years

but now there is one on the books; therefore, HB 274 woul d add
referenduns, so that they have "the force of Jlaw' that
initiatives have.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT covered the portion of the Sectional
Summary of HB 274 [included in the conmttee packet], which read
as follows [original punctuation provided]:

Section 1. Requires the lieutenant governor, iif a
referendum is scheduled to appear on the ballot, to
hold at least tw public hearings concerning the
referendum in each judicial district of the state at
| east 30 days before the election. Establishes notice
requirenents and guidelines for the conduct of the
heari ngs.

Section 2. Requires a standing comrttee of the
legislature to hold at Ileast one hearing on each
referendum that is scheduled to appear on the
statew de ball ot .

Section 3. Specifies what nust be included in a
hearing held under AS 24.05.186 on an initiative or a
ref erendum

Section 4. Applies the new requirenments in section 1
of the bill to initiatives and referenda appearing on
the ballot after the effective date of the Act.
Applies sections 2 and 3 to initiatives and referenda
on a ballot after the August 2014 primary.

Section 5. Mikes the bill's provisions effective
i redi at el y.

9:47:13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 6, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT, in response to the chair, indicated that
the proposed | egislation would apply to the primary el ection and
CGeneral Election.

REPRESENTATIVE M LLETT said there was an onsl aught of
initiatives, addressing subjects including cruise ships and

coastal zone managenent. She said although there is a single
issue requirenment for an initiative, the cruise ship initiative
became very broad; it contained six different subjects. She

said, "So, there were sonme changes made legislatively after two
years, because a referendum and initiative can't be changed for
two years." She said the proposed |egislation would provide the
public with the opportunity to know the purpose, intended
effect, and cost to the state of a referendum She offered her
under st andi ng that when House Bill 36 passed four years ago, it
had the support of both bodies, wth the exception of one
per son.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT said HB 274 has a zero fiscal note; the

Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, which wll conduct the
heari ngs around the state, has relayed it can absorb the cost of
travel . She tal ked about an exception under |law for those who

cannot make it to a neeting place to participate tel ephonically
and for a proxy to deliver testinony.

9:52: 02 AM
REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT said as sponsor of the initiative bill,

she had attended three of the coastal zone managenment nmeetings
with the lieutenant governor and was inpressed by the anmount of

public invol venent. She noted that there was a letter from the
Al aska Municipal League (AM.), in support of HB 274, in the
committee packet. She suggested that [a representative of] AM
could speak about the organization's appreciation of the
opportunity to speak about initiatives that wll af f ect
muni ci palities. She expressed her hope that the proposed
| egislation would be nobved through both bodies so that the
current |ieutenant governor could "start on the road to the

current referendumthat's out, which is SB 21."
9:53:31 AM
CHAI R LYNN announced that HB 274 was held over.

HIR 17- CONST AM GUARANTEE PERM FUND DI VI DEND

9: 53: 55 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 6, 2014



CHAI R LYNN announced that the final order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO 17, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the Al aska
permanent fund, establishing the earnings reserve account,
relating to the permanent fund dividend, and requiring the
permanent fund dividend be at |east equal to the anount that
woul d be cal cul ated under current |aw.

9:53: 58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LES GARA, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced HIR 17. He said the proposed joint resolution asks
for the current dividend formula to be put in the Constitution
of the State of Al aska. He nentioned that he and Rick Halford
were friends with the [ate Governor Jay, who would say, "You get
a fair share for your oil first, and you touch the dividend

last.” He said the Al aska permanent fund dividend (PFD) creates
roughly 10,000 jobs in Al aska and "levels out the highs and
lows." He explained that Al aska has had the least differentia

growt h between rich and poor than any other state in the country
because of the PFD. He opined that cutting the dividend is the
nost regressive action that can be taken, because cutting it by
$500, while not significantly inpacting someone who nakes $1
mllion, would inpact sonmeone who nakes $12 an hour; it would
af fect the working cl ass.

9:55:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GARA cited an article from The Juneau Enpire that
guotes Governor Hammond as having said his dividend program
woul d all ow Al askans to share in their resource wealth, confine
the benefits to Al askans only, have an equitable inpact on both
rich and poor, and maximze the favorable inpact wupon the
state's econony by keeping a far |arger portion of noney to fund
the prograns here in Alaska. Representative Gara said as fisca

pressures nmount in Al aska, there are sone who will look first to
the PFD. He stated he would like to protect the -current
dividend formula in the constitution so that the dividend does
not get decreased as people begin fighting over deficits.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA said the Departnent of Revenue has predicted
that even under "this new oil bill," Alaska will be down to
approximately 370,000 barrels of oil a year in ten years' tine.
He said that is "about the sane as they had predicted under a
former oil law." He said the state is probably going to be down
in revenue by about $12 billion over the next ten years,

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 6, 2014



dependi ng upon oil prices. He reiterated that he does not want
the people's dividend to be harmned. He expressed his hope that
SB 21 would be reversed, but said regardless of how the state
proceeds, the dividend has been a way to stabilize the econony
in Alaska and to ensure those in rural Al aska have noney for
essentials, such as fuel. He said the dividend noney spent by
rural and urban Al askans goes right back in to the econony. He
relayed there is a study by the Institute of Social and Econom c
Research (ISER) in the commttee packet, which shows what the
PFD does to stabilize the econony and prevent the w de gap
bet ween rich and poor.

9:58:17 AM

RI CK HALFORD t hanked the conmmttee for hearing HIR 17, which he
opined is an inportant issue. He continued as follows:

It is sad that the constituency for equality doesn't
have enough insiders in that it's not regressive
enough for sonme or progressive enough for others, but
the fact is that the permanent fund dividend is a part
of the econom c base of the State of Al aska. And if
you did need $100 mllion, who would want to take half
of that from the poor, retired, and underenpl oyed and
100 percent of it from Al aska residents, nothing from
nonresidents? |It's the worst place to go for noney,
even in a tinme of shortage.

[HIR 17 was hel d over.]
9:59: 57 AM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- February 6, 2014



